FILED
SUPREME COURT
STATE OF WASHINGTON
5/1/2025
BY SARAH R. PENDLETON
CLERK

Case #: 1041209

FILED
Court of Appeals
Division I
State of Washington
5/1/2025 2:27 PM

Case No: 858378

COURT OF APPEALS
DIVISION 1
OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

LEGACY CONSTRUCTION GROUP, LLC,
Respondent

v.

NEVIN and YAVUZ DRAMAN, et al.
Appellants

APPELLANTS' PETITION FOR REVIEW
IN ACCORDANCE WITH RAP 13.4

Appellants
NEVIN DRAMAN (she/her) and YAVUZ DRAMAN (he/his)
are filing their own petition for review

17416 NE 38th St, Redmond, WA 98052
nev.draman@gmail.com

C. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

ERROR NO.2: Trial Court failed to understand that Legacy's "Claim of Lien" (Ex 222) was void.

ISSUE to be solved by the Superior Court: Legacy's lien (Ex222) should be dismissed and Yavuz should get back his right to use his property as he wishes.

Trial Court decided that Legacy's contracts were with MSC, not Dramans (FOF#12,COL#47).

Legacy filed lien (Ex222) by naming **Nevin** and **Yavuz** as "indebted to claimant". MSC wasn't mentioned in lien.

Legacy named Yavuz as Owner of Property on lien (Ex222,Pg1). Lien didn't mention Nevin as Owner.

Nevin signed contracts with Legacy, as "Sole Owner of MSC" (Ex209,Ex210). Yavuz wasn't mentioned in Contracts.

Yavuz is Owner of Property. (FOF#4,5)

Nevin is Owner of MSC. (FOF#6,7)

MSC paid for and owned improvements (Ex209,Ex210).

MSC is a separate legal entity per **RCW 25.15.071 (3)**.

Legacy was required to know and obey RCW 18.27 per RCW 18.27.005 – Strict Enforcement.

Legacy was strictly enforced to give disclosure statement to its client MSC per **RCW 18.27.114 - Disclosure statement required—Prerequisite to lien claim** before starting work.

Legacy didn't give disclosure statement to MSC.

Legacy didn't give disclosure statement to Dramans, either,

Per RCW 18.27.114 Legacy had no right to claim lien on Property as it didn't give disclosure statement to MSC.

Also, lien was filed wrong naming Dramans as indebted.

ERROR NO.3: Trial Court failed to understand that Legacy breached Contracts and broke laws by not obtaining several permits per RCW 19.27.095 for Legacy, and subcontractors and using unlicensed contractors (FOF#38).

ISSUE to be solved by the Superior Court: Legacy's case should be dismissed per RCW 18.27.080 - Registration prerequisite to suit and Dramans should be granted the relief they sought at COA.

Two Courts' decision is in conflict with Washington Supreme Court's decision *Dobson v. Archibald (2023)*.

Precedent says that *"anyone engaged in the activities of a contractor is presumed to know the requirements of this Chapter"* and is strictly enforced to obey RCW 18.27.

Precedent says that contractor failing to comply with the requirement of **current registration** per **RCW 18.27.020** and **RCW 18.27.060** can't sue, and claim compensation at the court per **RCW 18.27.080** even if other party didn't raise these facts, because **it is the responsibility of contractor to strictly obey the related statues of RCW 18.27**.

Legacy failed to issue Redmond City permits per RCW 19.27.095, and Legacy's registration was NOT verified and was NOT found to be current by Redmond City's permit process per RCW 18.27.110, and RCW 18.27.010.

A.Contreras testified that Legacy didn't issue permits, claiming that the city didn't require Legacy to issue permits with its name and registration number printed on them, but his words (RP 352-353) contradicted with RCW 18.27.110 and RCW 19.27.095.

RCW 18.27.110 - Building permits—Verification of registration required strictly enforced Redmond City to make

verification before issuing permits, but Legacy didn't pass this as Legacy failed to issue permits.

Also, **RCW 19.27.050 – Enforcement** enforced the city to obey **RCW 19.27.095 - Building permit application—**
Consideration—Requirements and the city enforced contractors to obtain permits **with their names and current registration numbers printed on them** before doing any work in excess of \$5,000. Two Contracts (Ex209, Ex210) were \$80,000 and \$35,000 respectively.

Contractor registration is valid for two years, and could be suspended per RCW 18.27.060. Legacy failed to submit evidence to the Court to prove that Legacy's registration was current and without issue per RCW 18.27.020 and RCW 18.27.060, despite its failure (RP 352-353) to have it verified by the city.

D. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

MSC and Legacy signed Contracts on 2/7/2019 for remodeling, and painting & flooring at Yavuz's Property in Redmond, WA. MSC would run Adult Family Home (AFH) at Property. Nevin signed as MSC's Sole Owner. A. Contreras signed for Legacy.

Remodeling (Ex209), valued \$80,000, required Legacy to remodel Property into AFH per Approved Plans (Ex207), AFH Inspection List (Ex208), and Contract.

Painting & Flooring (P&F) (Ex210), valued \$35,000, required Legacy to strengthen insulation, install crown molding and baseboards, texture, prime and paint Property with 17 doors, and install interlocking flooring.

By 5/4/2019, Property would pass the city's "Final", and "AFH Inspection" (Ex208). Remodeling started on 2/7/2019 and P&F would start on 3/22/2019 (Ex210, Pg2).

Timely completion was extremely important to apply to AFH licensing, start business, and get E-2 visas for Dramans through MSC. Payments depended on milestones. **Also, Remodeling's**

\$20,000, and P&F's \$15,000 depended on completion by 5/4/2019.

Remodeling required Legacy to register to the city to take over BLDG-2018-08556, permit issued to Yavuz for plans' approval (Ex205). P&F required a second permit.

Dramans discovered in May that Legacy didn't issue permits and tricked them. **Legacy broke RCW 19.27.095 and RCW 18.27.110, and breached Contracts.**

A.Contreras acted as if Owner's "Authorized Agent", and used Yavuz's permit (Ex205) to pass inspections (Ex237), without Yavuz's knowledge, and consent.

While Remodeling, inspections were failed and postponed due to faulty and missing work (Ex237). Final was on **8/22/2019** (Ex237,Pg2), not **05/04/2019**.

There was one "Change Order" on **2/26/2019** (Ex213) to build concrete slab instead of crawl space in the old garage, **without budget and schedule change.**

Legacy cancelled important work items without MSC's consent: fire sprinkler installation, sleeving of main sewer pipe under newly built entrance (Ex209), and strengthening insulation inside walls (Ex210).

Legacy delivered inferior flooring (Ex77), not the agreed one (Ex275,Ex24). Most materials, including eight windows, nine sinks, and WCs arrived in May-June.

Nevin cancelled P&F on 5/9/2019 for total breach. The same day A.Contreas called the police to accuse Nevin with 4th degree assault, but case was dismissed with prejudice. (Ex224)

Legacy's starting P&F on 5/2/2019 despite 5/4/2019 deadline, bringing inferior flooring, starting flooring installation while messy Remodeling was happening (Ex240), jumping to texture by cancelling insulation strengthening, and missing permits were the reasons for "total breach".

Besides, Remodeling was far behind schedule with hardly 50% complete past due date (Ex240), and A.Contreas was using the same three people for both Remodeling and P&F.

Meanwhile, Dramans were living in construction without budget to move out (Ex262), and getting late for E-2 visas.

P.Revelo and S.Pereira testified to knowing Legacy previously, and reaching out Nevin to work after hearing about the police incident from A.Contreras' crew. (RP 9,123-124).

A.Contreras accepted P.Revelo for tiling, but refused S.Pereira for P&F. He had no right to do so after the breach. Nevin cited MSC's rights per P&F, and S.Pereira started to work. **Ex33** shows A.Contreras's terrible acts at work. S.Pereira testified to his bad faith, knowing him for years. (RP 136-137,140).

S.Pereira testified to correcting Legacy's mistakes, doing most of P&F, and getting **\$32-36,000** from Nevin (RP 140,147-149).

P.Revelo testified to Nevin paying him **\$4,000** (RP 8-10,20).

Ex233 shows payments to S.Pereira and P.Revelo.

MSC paid **\$6,065** for materials that Legacy didn't buy (Ex250).

\$80,000 was paid to Legacy, and **\$44,065** was paid to others and materials. MSC spent **\$124,065** to finish **\$115,000** valued Contracts with missing important items and **3.5 months delay**.

On 9/10/2019 Legacy filed Lien, naming Dramans, not MSC, as “indebted to claimant” (Ex 222).

On 6/7/2020, Legacy served summons to Dramans, not

MSC. MSC was added as defendant with Dramans’ motion.

Basically, Legacy requested the value of P&F that it didn’t perform, claiming that it did most of the work (Ex221). Pictures in Ex240 on 05/11/2019 show that it wasn’t the case. So does payment to S.Pereira, and his testimony.

E. ARGUMENT

E.1: RAP 13.4 b(1)

Trial Court’s and COA’s decision is in conflict with

Washington Supreme Court’s decision *Dobson v. Archibald* (2023).

Precedent says that “*anyone engaged in the activities of a contractor is presumed to know the requirements of this*

Chapter” (RCW 18.27) including people who isn’t registered contractor, but can be defined as contractor by the five-part test used by the Washington COA in *Rose v. Tarman (1977)*.

Precedent says that contractor failing to comply with the requirement of current registration per RCW 18.27.020 and RCW 18.27.060 can’t sue, and claim compensation at the court per RCW 18.27.080 even if other party didn’t raise these facts, because **it is the responsibility of contractor to strictly obey the related statues of RCW 18.27**.

Per RCW 18.27.005 - Strict enforcement, the doctrine of substantial compliance couldn’t be used for contractor’s failure to obey the statutes of RCW 18.27.

Two Courts failed to dismiss case initiated by Legacy with non-current registration per RCW 18.27.080.

Two Courts failed to dismiss lien with missing disclosure statement per RCW 18.27.114; Legacy was strictly enforced to know, and obey all statues of RCW 18.27.

E.2: RAP 13.4 b(4)

Two Courts’ disregarding the statues of “*strictly enforced*”

RCW 18.27 – Registration of Contractors and “*enforced*”

RCW 19.27-State Building Code stands as an issue of substantial public interest by setting wrong example.

Two Courts decided to award compensation to Legacy:

1. who deliberately failed to issue permits per **RCW 19.27.095**, and avoided its registration to be verified per **RCW 18.27.110**, **RCW 18.27.010** and **RCW 18.27.005**,
2. who didn’t prove to the Court that it met **substantial compliance** criteria per **RCW 18.27.080 - Registration prerequisite to suit** despite avoiding the city’s registration verification per **RCW 18.27.110**, and whose case needed to be dismissed per **RCW 18.27.080**.
3. who didn’t give disclosure statement to MSC or Dramans per **RCW 18.27.114 - Disclosure statement required—**

Prerequisite to lien claim, and whose lien needed to be dismissed per **RCW 18.27.114**.

RCW 18.27.010 – Definitions states:

Finding—1993 c 454: "The legislature finds that unregistered contractors are a serious threat to the general public and are costing the state millions of dollars each year in lost revenue. ..." [1993 c 454 s 1.]

Two Courts’ decision can be a dangerous Precedent paving the way to contractors to get compensation from the Court despite breaking “strictly enforced” statutes of RCW 18.27, and “enforced” RCW 19.27.095.

Even a word of mouth circulating in close-knit Contractors’ Association can be as dangerous as a Precedent.

This case can give contractors the wrong message that it is ok to work un-permitted, avoiding registration verification by the city, hiding behind Owner’s permit as unregistered contractor,

and employing illegal people without leaving any trace at the city's system without permit, and city's business license.

E.3: RAP 13.4 b(3)

Trial Court and COA failed to consider, and obey the statutes below:

RCW 18.27.005 - Strict enforcement

RCW 18.27.020 - Registration required

RCW 18.27.040 - Bond or other security required—Actions against—Suspension of registration upon impairment.

RCW 18.27.050 - Insurance or financial responsibility required—Suspension of registration upon impairment.

RCW 18.27.060 - Certificate of registration—Issuance, duration, renewal—Suspension

RCW 18.27.062 - Inspection by department—Subcontractor list—Certificate of registration

RCW 18.27.080 - Registration prerequisite to suit

RCW 18.27.110 - Building permits—Verification of registration required

RCW 18.27.114 - Disclosure statement required—

Prerequisite to lien claim

RCW 19.27.050 - Enforcement.

RCW 19.27.095 - Building permit application—

Consideration—Requirements

RCW 25.15.031 - Purpose and powers

RCW 25.15.036 - Business transactions of member or manager with the limited liability company

RCW 25.15.071 - Certificate of formation

Contracts required MSC and Legacy to obey the laws, rules, and regulations of WA State and the USA (Ex209, Ex210), including the ones listed above.

Trial Court and COA (Two Courts) failed to understand the significance of **Legacy's not issuing Redmond City permits**, and intentional failure to obey WA State laws, including **RCW**

18.27 – Registration of Contractors and RCW 19.27-State Building Code.

Two Courts were required to, but failed to dismiss Legacy's case per RCW 18.27.080, and its lien per RCW 18.27.114; Legacy failed to fulfill these statutes, so Legacy didn't have the right to sue, and put lien on Property.

RCW 18.27.080 - Registration prerequisite to suit (*valid in 2019*) states:

*No person engaged in the business or acting in the capacity of a contractor **may bring or maintain any action in any court of this state for the collection of compensation for the performance of any work or for breach of any contract for which registration is required under this Chapter without alleging and proving that he or she was a duly registered contractor and held a current and valid certificate of registration at the time***

**he or she contracted for the performance of such work
or entered into such contract.**

*For the purposes of this section, **the court shall not find
a contractor in substantial compliance with the
registration requirements of this Chapter unless:***

*(1) The department has on file the information
required by **RCW 18.27.030**;*

*(2) the contractor has at all times had in force a
current bond or other security as required by
RCW 18.27.040; and*

*(3) the contractor has at all times had in force
current insurance as required by **RCW 18.27.050**.*

RCW 18.27.114 - Disclosure statement required—

Prerequisite to lien claim *(valid in 2019)* states:

*(1) Any contractor agreeing to perform any contracting
project: (a) For the repair, alteration, or construction of*

four or fewer residential units or accessory structures on such residential property when the bid or contract price totals one thousand dollars or more ... must provide the customer with the following disclosure statement in substantially the following form ... prior to starting work on the project: ...

Two Courts failed to obey statutes, and consider the closely linked facts listed below:

- 1. Legacy was obliged to know and obey RCW 18.27 per RCW 18.27.005 - Strict enforcement (valid in 2019):**

This chapter shall be strictly enforced. Therefore, the doctrine of substantial compliance shall not be used by the department in the application and construction of this chapter. Anyone engaged in the activities of a contractor is presumed to know the requirements of this chapter.

- 2. Legacy failed to issue Redmond City permits per RCW 19.27.095, and Legacy's registration was NOT verified**

and was NOT found to be current by Redmond City's permit process per RCW 18.27.110, and RCW 18.27.010.

RCW 18.27.110 - Building permits—Verification of registration required strictly enforced Redmond City to make registration verification before issuing permits to contractors, but Legacy didn't pass this verification as Legacy failed to issue permits.

RCW 18.27.010 – Definitions defines "Verification" as:

the receipt and duplication by the city, town, or county of a contractor registration card that was current on its face, checking the department's contractor registration database, or calling the department to confirm that the contractor was registered.

Also, **RCW 19.27.050 – Enforcement** enforced the city to obey **RCW 19.27.095 - Building permit application—Consideration—Requirements** and the city enforced contractors to obtain permits **with their names and current**

registration numbers printed on them before doing any work in excess of \$5,000. Two Contracts (Ex209, Ex210) were \$80,000 and \$35,000 respectively.

3. **Contractor registration is valid for two years, and could be suspended per RCW 18.27.060. Legacy failed to submit evidence to the Court to prove that Legacy's registration was current and without issue per RCW 18.27.020 and RCW 18.27.060, despite its intentional failure (RP 352-353) to have its registration verified by the city's permit process.**

Per **RCW 18.27.080 - Registration prerequisite to suit**

Legacy was required to prove that it met the bullet-points below for **substantial compliance**, despite missing verification by the City, **but it failed to do so.**

- a) The department had on file the information required by **RCW 18.27.030**;

b) the contractor has at all times had in force a current bond or other security as required by **RCW 18.27.040**; and

c) the contractor has at all times had in force current insurance as required by **RCW 18.27.050**.

4. **A.Contreras acted as an unregistered contractor**, by the definition of the five-part test used by the Washington COA in **Rose v. Tarman (1977)**. **He did Remodeling work instead of Legacy** by pretending to the city as if he worked for Yavuz as his “Authorized Agent”, without contract and without Dramans’ knowledge.

As seen in Ex8,Pg2 below A.Contreras signed permit applications for electric, plumbing and mechanical contractors (Ex8 -11, Ex13-14, Ex245).

He signed as:

“BUILDING OWNER OR AUTHORIZED AGENT”

stating that:

“I hereby certify that I have read and examined this application and know the same to be true and correct, and I am authorized to apply for this permit”

Ex8,Pg2

BUILDING OWNER OR AUTHORIZED AGENT	
I hereby certify that I have read and examined this application and know the same to be true and correct, and I am authorized to apply for this permit.	
Print Name: <u>Armando Contreras</u>	Date: <u>07-10-2018</u>
Signature: <u>Armando Contreras</u>	
3/19/2018	Development Services Center, 15670 NE 85th St, Redmond, WA 98052 425.556.2473 Page 1

He lied to the city as he wasn't authorized to apply for subcontractor permits tied to permit BLDG-2018-08556 (Ex205) that was issued to Yavuz. He needed to issue permit for Legacy, and then apply for subcontractor permits tied to Legacy's own permit as The General Contractor per Remodeling Contract, Ex209,Pg2 below.

Ex209,Pg2

<p>Details of the agreement through this Contract</p> <p><u>Responsibilities of the Contractor:</u></p> <ol style="list-style-type: none">1. Obtain the contractor permit from the City of Redmond to start the project in the week of 02/04/2019.2. Take over the project as the general contractor from the Project Owner through the filing of the related form at the City of Redmond by the Project Owner in the week of 02/04/2019.3. Take the necessary precautions according to the City of Redmond's rules and regulations and the laws of the WA State, in the construction site so that the workers and employees working in the project, auditing parties from the City of Redmond and the King County and neighbors of the house won't have any harm because of the construction.

Ex8,Pg2



As seen in Ex8,Pg2 above, Electric permit application was attached to BLDG-2018-08556 in A.Contreras' handwriting. BLDG-2018-08556 was the permit issued to Yavuz while getting the plans approved as part of the procedure until the Prime Contractor was decided. A.Contreras broke RCW 18.27.110 2(a) and RCW 19.27.095 2(b)(c) by using BLDG-2018-08556 as if issued

to Legacy. Legacy was required to issue own permit with its name and registration number on it.

Two Courts disregarded that Legacy was the contractor as an LLC signing Contracts with MSC with nothing to do with Yavuz and A.Contreras as a person. And Yavuz had nothing to do with A.Contreras or MSC in any capacity. No FOF or COL stated otherwise.

Two Courts failed to obey the statues below. As an LLC Legacy was legally separate from A.Contreras as a person. WA State's Doctrine of Corporate Disregard wasn't applicable between Legacy and A.Contreras per the plain wording of **RCW 18.27.020**. As a contractor Legacy LLC was totally different than A.Contreras as a person doing construction.

RCW 25.15.031

A limited liability company has the same powers as an individual to do all things necessary or convenient to carry on its activities.

RCW 25.15.036

A member or manager....., subject to other applicable law, has the same rights and obligations with respect to the loan or other transaction as a person who is not a member or manager.

RCW 25.15.071

(3) A limited liability company formed under this Chapter is a separate legal entity and has a perpetual existence.

5. Legacy failed to give disclosure statement to MSC and also to Dramans per RCW 18.27.114 - Disclosure statement required—Prerequisite to lien claim.

- a. Legacy didn't give Dramans disclosure statement despite naming them as indebted to Legacy on Lien (Ex222) as if Legacy worked for them or contracted with them,
- b. Legacy signed contracts with MSC (FOF#12,COL#47), but didn't give MSC disclosure statement before starting work.

6. Quantum meruit wasn't applicable to Property owner Yavuz because MSC paid for and owned the improvements

per Contracts (Ex 209, Ex210). No FOFs or COLs stated that Dramans got rich from the value of improvements, or tiered MSC's corporate veil. **So, WA state's Doctrine of Corporate Disregard wasn't applicable.**

Two Courts failed to respect **RCW 25.15.071 - Formation—Certificate of formation** that states:

(3) A limited liability company formed under this Chapter is a separate legal entity and has a perpetual existence.

Two courts made decisions as if they were totally unaware of RCW 25.25, RCW 19.27 and RCW 18.27.

A rational person would agree that The Court undertaking a construction litigation case concerning a contractor and two LLCs should know and obey **RCW 25.15 – Limited Liability Companies**, **RCW 18.27 – Registration of Contractors**, and **RCW 19.27-State Building Code** as the “pillars”.

A rational person would also agree that when it isn't ok for a contractor not to know “strictly enforced” RCW 18.27,

then it isn't ok for The Court not to know RCW 18.27,
either; especially when permits were non-existent for
Legacy, the prime contractor per Contracts.

A.Contreras testified that Legacy didn't issue permits,
claiming that the city didn't require Legacy to issue permits
with its name and registration number printed on them, but his
words (RP 352-353) contradicted with RCW 18.27.110 -
Building permits—Verification of registration and
RCW 19.27.095 - Building permit application. Two Courts
disregarded that A.Contreras was lying and not credible.

RCW 18.27.110 - Building permits—Verification of
registration required states:

*(1) No city, town or county shall issue a construction
building permit for work which is to be done by any
contractor required to be registered under this Chapter
without verification that such contractor is currently
registered as required by law. ...*

(2) At the time of issuing the building permit, all cities, towns, or counties are responsible for:

*(a) **Printing the contractor registration number on the building permit;** and*

*(b) **Providing a written notice to the building permit applicant informing them of contractor registration laws and the potential risk and monetary liability to the homeowner for using an unregistered contractor.***

RCW 19.27.095 - Building permit application states:

*(2) The requirements for a fully completed application ... **at a minimum:***

(a) The legal description, or the tax parcel number assigned ...

*(b) **The property owner's name, address, and phone number;***

(c) The prime contractor's business name, address, phone number, current state contractor registration number; and ...

RCW 19.27.050 – Enforcement enforced **RCW 19.27.095 - Building permit application** to be fulfilled by the cities, including Redmond City:

The state building code required by this Chapter shall be enforced by the counties and cities.** Any county or **city** not having a building department shall contract with another county, city, or inspection agency approved by the county or city **for enforcement of the state building code within its jurisdictional boundaries.

Despite permit requirements per Contracts, **RCW 18.27**, and **RCW 19.27**, Legacy's failure to issue Redmond City permits for itself **was breaking the laws deliberately for its own benefit while hurting Dramans**; not an unintentional mistake, nor a "mischief" to avoid permit fee. Legacy acted

in bad faith, and did everything to keep Dramans unaware of it.

Legacy exposed Dramans to serious risks and liability because in the city's records Yavuz was and still is the Prime Contractor of BLDG-2018-08556, the permit tied to Remodeling done.

Legacy didn't issue permit to override Yavuz's permit and take over as the General Contractor (*Prime Contractor*). Without his knowledge, Yavuz stayed responsible for **issues that might take place because of the work done at the Property by**

A.Contreras and his crew, i.e. newly built walls collapsing on senior residents, or sewer backing up into the rooms.

Per **RCW 18.27.110** the city is only responsible for making verification of contractor registration if the contractor applies for permit, and nothing else. **By keeping Yavuz as the Prime Contractor, and not applying to the city for permit for itself, Legacy put all the liability on Yavuz**, and left none on Legacy and the city. Two Courts totally failed to understand the severe consequences of such a situation.

Every contract has an implied duty of good faith and fair dealing. “This duty obligates the parties to cooperate with each other so that each may obtain the full benefit of performance.” *Feyen v. Spokane Tchrs. Credit Union*, 23 Wn. App. 2d 264, 276-77, 515 P.3d 996 (2022).

Legacy didn’t deal in good faith and fairly with MSC and Dramans. Despite signing two Contracts with MSC, and committing to work per WA State and the USA laws, Legacy broke several laws and hid this fact from Dramans.


Two Courts failed to acknowledge Legacy’s acts as material breaches of Contracts (ERROR No.1 - No.3).

Dramans had no negligence to cause Legacy’s wrongdoings; no FOFs or COLs stated otherwise. Neither RCW 18.27 nor RCW 19.27 didn’t give Dramans and MSC any responsibility to check the contractor. **Both Chapters enforced Legacy to obey them.** Till late May 2019 Dramans weren’t even aware of Legacy’s failure to obey the laws; Nevin discovered it after

cancelling P&F and going to the city to cancel Legacy's P&F permit for the records when A.Contreras refused putting the cancellation in writing (*ERROR No.1*). She found out that there was neither P&F, nor Remodeling permit issued to Legacy.

Apparently, Legacy didn't meet the city's verification to issue permits, and A.Contreras worked as an unregistered contractor with his family and friends instead of Legacy, pretending to be working under Yavuz's permit for Remodeling and without any permit for P&F.

Legacy didn't submit any employment records for witnesses E.Contreras, G.Viveros and several other people, i.e. Alexis Contreras who were recorded as working at the Property per Exhibits (Ex262-263, Ex257 Pg 1,2,3,6,9) to prove they worked as Legacy's legal employees despite Legacy's failure to issue permit and Redmond business license (Ex206) and they didn't work with A.Contreras, an unregistered contractor.

INVOICE	
Date: August 26, 2019	
	From: CM INSULATION Carmelo Mesino, owner 3221 72 nd St E Tacoma, WA 98443 Cell: (253) 283-3039
Bill To: Arcenio	Contact: Arcenio Cell: (206) 423-1425 email: arcenio.legacy@gmail.com
Site Address: 17416 NE 38 th St Redmond, WA 98052	
WORK DESCRIPTION	
Installed Insulation, Labor & Materials included.	
NEW ADDITION: R-21 Batt at exterior walls. R-49 Batt at attic. cardboard baffles for attic ventilation. Prep-work	
EXISTING: Re-align batts in attic. Repaired baffles in attic.	
Cost:	\$2,500.00
Sub-Total:	\$2,500.00
10.0% Sales Tax:	\$250.00
Grand Total:	\$2,750.00
Note: Please provide Re-Seller Permit if you are not paying the sales tax. For questions regarding workmanship call Carmelo Mesino, owner For billing questions call Marivel Vasquez, assistant, at (206) 491-6271	
Please make check payable to: CM INSULATION 3221 72 nd St E Tacoma, WA 98443	
Thank you for your business!	

In Ex17,Pg2 above, “CM Insulation” invoiced Arcenio for insulation work. There is no evidence submitted to the Court showing A.Contreras or CM Insulation being registered

contractors. Per A.Contreras' testimony (RP 403-404, 406)

"Jaime, the plumber" was in a similar situation while relocating the main sewer pipe in the crawl space.

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