FILED
SUPREME COURT
STATE OF WASHINGTON
6/20/2025 8:00 AM
BY SARAH R. PENDLETON
CLERK

Case No. 1041209

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

Court of Appeals Division I, Case No. 858378

NEVIN and YAVUZ DRAMAN,

Appellants.

v.

LEGACY CONSTRUCTION GROUP, LLC,

Respondent.

RESPONDENT'S ANSWER TO PETITION FOR REVIEW

LINVILLE LAW FIRM, PLLC
Christian J. Linville, WSBA #33545
Attorney for Respondent, Legacy Construction Group, LLC
4025 Delridge Way SW, Ste 540
Seattle, WA 98106
206-515-0642
clinville@linvillelawfirm.com

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

III. ARGUMENT

A. The Dramans do not meet the criteria necessary for review to be accepted by the Supreme Court.

The Supreme Court only accepts petitions for review that involve a type of case that qualifies under at least one of the four categories set forth in RAP 13.4(b). The Draman's petition for review does fall under any of the four categories and therefore it should be rejected.

B. Response to Error 1: The Draman's petition for review does not satisfy RAP 13.4(b)(1).

The Draman's petition should be rejected because it fails to specifically address how Division I's opinion conflicts with any decision by the Supreme Court. The Dramans make a single, very brief assertion in their petition that both the Trial Court's decision and the Court of Appeals' decision "conflict" with the Supreme Court's decision in *Dobson v. Archibald*, 1

Wn.3d 102, 523 P.3d 1190 (2023).³ However, the Draman's reference to *Dobson* is only made to support a brand new argument that the Dramans assert for the very first time in their petition for review, i.e., that Legacy violated RCW 18.27.080 by failing to properly register as a contractor - and therefore Legacy's case should have been dismissed under RCW 18.27.080.

Legacy's construction license was never at issue in this case (or even on appeal). The owner of Legacy testified that Legacy was a registered contractor. RP 168. Legacy's License Number was listed on both of the construction contracts that the Dramans prepared (Ex 209 and Ex 210) as well as Legacy's invoices for its work (Ex 220 and Ex 221). The Dramans did not even attempt to offer any evidence that would remotely suggest that Legacy was unlicensed or in violation of RCW 18.27.080 at the time when it performed the work. There was substantial, if not overwhelming, evidence to support the trial

³ Petion for Review, Pages 7 and 14.

court's finding that Legacy was a licensed general contractor and did not violate RCW 18.27.080. CP 225.

The Dramans argue that their petition should be accepted under RAP 13.4(b)(1) because Legacy allegedly failed to provide a Notice to Customer Statement per RCW 18.27.114. This is a brand-new argument/defense that the Dramans did not raise at trial or at the Court of Appeals and therefore it is too late for them to raise it in their petition for review.

Even if the Dramans had timely asserted this argument at trial and if the argument had been addressed by the Court of Appeals, it would have surely been rejected because Legacy was not required to give this notice. Per RCW 18.27.114(1)(b), contractors are not required to give the notice on commercial projects where the contract price exceeds \$60,000. The subject project was a commercial project because it involved Legacy's construction of a new business premises for Mindful Senior Care, which is a for-profit, limited liability company. The contract price greatly exceeded \$60,000. CP 228.

C. The Draman's petition for review does not satisfy RAP 13.4(b)(2).

The Dramans appear to concede that their petition does not fit into the second category of cases the Supreme Court is permitted to accept under RAP 13.4(b) because the Dramans do not contend Division I's decision in this case conflicts with some other appellate court decision. The Dramans do not reference any other Court of Appeals case in their petition, other than to generally reference the case of Feyen v. Spokane Teachers Credit Union, 23 Wn. App. 2d 264, 276-77, 515 P.3d 996 (2022) for the implied duty of good faith and fair dealing. The trial court cited the Feyen case in its decision and concluded that the Dramans breached the implied duty, not Legacy. (CP 238, 239). The Dramans do not attempt to explain in their petition how the trial court or Court of Appeals misapplied the doctrine, as set forth in Feyen.

D. Response to Error 2: The Draman's petition for review does not satisfy RAP 13.4(b)(4).

The Draman's petition does not fit into the fourth category of cases the Supreme Court may accept for review under RAP 13.4(b) because it does not involve an issue of substantial public interest. Only the Draman's own, selfish, monetary interests relating to a private construction agreement are at stake in this case (and on appeal).

The Dramans urge this Court to accept their petition under RAP 13.4(b)(4) on the grounds that Legacy was allegedly unregistered and failed to give the RCW 18.27.114 notice.

Both of these arguments were already addressed above. The Dramans also assert that Legacy "failed to issue permits" for the project in violation of RCW 19.27.095.

Pursuant to RCW 19.27.095, permit applicants must identify the prime contractor for the project. The Dramans applied for and obtained the building permit for the subject project on their own *before* they hired Legacy. Ex 205, 206,

209, 210. Consequently, the Dramans did not identify Legacy as the general contractor in the application and instead listed Yavuz as "Owner/Contractor". (Ex 205). Yavuz acknowledged that he was going to be acting as the general contractor for the project (Ex 206). The Draman's application met the requirements of RCW 19.27.095 and so the City issued the permit. During the project, Legacy submitted all of the necessary permits for electrical, plumbing, and mechanical (Ex 8-11, 13-14, 245-249) and received all inspection approvals from the City. CP 236. The City was certainly aware that Legacy was the general contractor on this project. Mr. Contreras testified that the City did not require the permit application to be amended to identify "Legacy" as the general contractor. RP 351-353.

The Dramans' argument in their petition for review, that
Legacy should have canceled the original permit that was
issued to Yavuz and applied for an entirely new permit under

Legay's name is completely unsupported by Washington law, the record, or logic.

Since the Draman's petition only pertains to the Draman's self-serving interests, i.e., to avoid paying their contractor (Legacy), the Supreme Court should not accept it for review under RAP 13.4(b)(4).

E. Response to Error 3: The Draman's petition for review does not satisfy RAP 13.4(b)(3).

Lastly, the Dramans' petition for review does not fit into the third category of cases that can be accepted for review under RAP 13.4(b) because it does not raise a significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or the United States.

Instead, the petition criticizes, without merit or support, findings and conclusions made by the trial court, and includes brand new claims and theories that the Dramans never

expressed at trial or at the Court of Appeals. The petition is devoid of any serious debate about any state or Federal law.

Nonetheless, the Dramans accuse the Court of Appeals and Trial Court of "failing to consider and obey" multiple statutes within the Contractors Registration Act (RCW 18.27). However, the only statute within the CRA that the Dramans mentioned in their brief on appeal was RCW 18.27.050. The Dramans failed to argue that any other CRA statutes were relevant or applicable. It is now too late for them to raise these arguments in their petition for review.

The Dramans argue (for the first time in their petition for review) that Mr. Contreras should have personally been found to have acted as an unregistered contractor, but the Dramans never made this argument at trial or at the Court of Appeals.

Mr. Contreras is not a party to this action. The Dramans offered no evidence to support a finding that Mr. Contreras performed work on their project in his personal, rather than corporate, capacity. It is clear from the contracts (Ex 209, 210)

and all of the other records relating to this construction project, that Mr. Contreras' acts were all done on behalf of his company, Legacy, which was at all times a registered contractor. CP 225.

The Dramans make a lot of allegations that Legacy did not properly navigate the permit process but, stepping back and looking at the big picture, all of the necessary permits were obtained for this construction project, the City passed all of the inspections, and the City ultimately signed off on all of Legacy's work. The Dramans do not argue otherwise or present any evidence of a specific permit that was missed or failed to pass inspection. All of the Dramans' strained criticisms relating to permits are hypothetical, abstract, and, even if true, did not result in any tangible harm to the Dramans.

IV. CONCLUSION

The Court of Appeals properly affirmed the Trial Court's findings and conclusions in this case. The Draman's petition

for review should be denied because it does not fall into any of the four categories of cases acceptable for review under RAP 13.4(b).

I certify that this document contains 2,927 words, in compliance with the word limits set forth in RAP 18.17.